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EP-25-0003_1 Sun Mountain Townhomes STM-REV24-0906 
1:40 PM, 07/30/2024

July 30, 2024 Matthew L. Morgan 
State Geologist 

Joel Dagnillo 
Engineering Development Review 
2880 International Circle, #200-7 
Colorado Springs, CO 80910 

Location: 
SE ¼ of NE ¼ of Section 11 

T14S, R67W of the 6th PM 
38.8484°, -104.8538° 

Subject: Sun Mountain Townhomes 
Colorado Springs, El Paso County, CO 
STM-REV24-0906; CGS Unique No. EP-25-0003 

Joel, 

The Colorado Geological Survey (CGS) has reviewed the referral for residential development (townhomes) 
with a disturbed area of approximately 2.52 acres. We received the Development Plan (MVE, Project 
51516, July 2, 2024) and the Geologic Hazard Assessment (Entech, Job Number 221101, July 1, 2024).  
We reviewed the previous application for apartments at this site (August 9, 2022, and February 16, 2023). 
These earlier review letters for the development of this property are considered part of this review. 

Entech has addressed many of the development concerns outlined in our review of a previous concept plan 
at this location. The city ordinance requires an evaluation and discussion of potential impacts to adjacent 
properties, and we recommend that the city require this before approval of the development plan for the 
Uintah Townhomes. This should include an evaluation and discussion of any potential impacts from the 
planned retaining walls to the adjacent Lot 2 of the Lofts at Mirrillion or potential impacts from the project 
to Lots 13, 14, 15, and 16 of the Lofts at Mirrillion. 

Entech states p.8, “Additional detailed site investigation is recommended at each building location prior to 
construction. Any special mitigation should be determined at that time.” They also state, “The proposed 
grading plan with engineered retaining walls and mitigation of expansive soils is appropriate for the site. 
Mitigation measures/approaches required for each building will be provided once building locations and 
grading are finalized.” We recommend that the city require these additional detailed site investigations in the 
future as a condition of approval. A site-specific investigation should also be required by the city for the 
planned retaining walls as part of the subsurface investigation for the global stability of the walls to 
determine “Any special mitigation…” that may be needed for the walls and any potential impacts they will 
have on the existing structure and its deep foundation at Lot 2 of the Lofts at Mirrillion. Site-specific 
investigations for Lots 9, 10, 11, and 12 should also be required to discuss potential impacts on Lots 13, 14, 
15, and 16 of the Lofts at Mirrillion. 

Before the development plan is approved, CGS recommends 
• The city require an amendment to the Geologic Hazard Assessment that includes an evaluation and 

discussion of potential impacts to adjacent properties, as outlined in this letter and required by the city 
ordinance.
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Golden, Colorado 80401 
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As conditions of approval, once the geologic hazard assessment is amended, CGS recommends the city 
require additional site investigations 
• For each building location, as recommended by Entech.
• Not just for the buildings but also for the retaining walls, including an analysis of site-specific global

stability of the retaining wall system based on a subsurface investigation at the wall location.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this project. If you have questions or require further review, 
please email me at jlovekin@mines.edu. 

Sincerely, 

      Jonathan R. Lovekin, P.G. 
      Senior Engineering Geologist 

mailto:jlovekin@mines.edu
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October 21, 2024 Matthew L. Morgan 
State Geologist 

  
Joel Dagnillo 
Engineering Development Review 
2880 International Circle, #200-7 
Colorado Springs, CO 80910 

Location: 
SE ¼ of NE ¼ of Section 11 

T14S, R67W of the 6th PM 
38.8484°, -104.8538° 

 

 

Subject: Sun Mountain Townhomes 
Colorado Springs, El Paso County, CO 
STM-REV24-0906; CGS Unique No. EP-25-0003_2 

Joel, 
 
The Colorado Geological Survey (CGS) has reviewed the response letter (Entech, Job No 221101, 
September 4, 2022) for this resubmittal. We reviewed the previous application for apartments at this site 
(August 9, 2022, and February 16, 2023) and the current submittal on July 30, 2024. These earlier review 
letters for the development of this property are considered part of this review. We offer the following 
comments and recommendations.  
 
Entech has addressed our previous comments. CGS has no objection to the approval of the initial 
development plan, provided that the additional investigations recommended by Entech are required as 
conditions of approval. These include: 

• Additional site investigations for each building location and retaining walls that include additional 
test borings and site-specific global stability analysis once final development plans are generated. 

• Retaining walls are designed by a qualified engineer for global stability. CGS also recommends 
that the retaining wall design discuss any temporary shoring requirements that may be required due 
to the site's geologic conditions.  

CGS looks forward to reviewing the final development plan and the results of the additional investigations 
and stability analysis for the retaining walls when they become available. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this project. If you have questions or require further review, 
please email me at jlovekin@mines.edu. 

 
Sincerely,       

   
  
  

      Jonathan R. Lovekin, P.G.      
      Senior Engineering Geologist 

1801 Moly Road 
Golden, Colorado 80401 
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